ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE TRANSPORTATI ON COWM TTEE
April 30, 2002
1:36 p.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or John Cowdery, Chair
Senator Jerry Ward, Vice Chair
Senat or Robi n Tayl or

Senator Gary W/ ken

Senat or Kim El ton

VEVMBERS ABSENT
Senat or Robi n Tayl or
COWM TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 374
"An Act nam ng the David Douthit Veterans' Menorial Bridge."

MOVED HB 374 QUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE BI LL NO. 362
"An Act relating to rights-of-way."

MOVED SB 362 QUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE BI LL NO. 271

"An Act establishing the Alaska Marine and Rail Transportation
Aut hority; establishing the marine and rail transportation fund;
relating to ferries and ferry termnals; relating to the Al aska
Rai | road Corporation; and providing for an effective date."

MOVED CSSB 271(TRA) OQUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE JO NT RESOLUTI ON NO. 32
Proposi ng anendnents to the Constitution of the State of Al aska
relating to a marine and rail transportation fund.

MOVED CSSJR 32(TRA) OUT OF COW TTEE
SENATE CS FOR CS FOR HOUSE BILL NO. 474( RES)
"An Act relating to public rights-of-way and easenments for

surface transportation affecting the Anchorage Coastal Wldlife
Ref uge. "

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -1- April 30, 2002



MOVED SCS CSHB 474( RES) OUT OF COWM TTEE

CS FOR HOUSE BILL NO 397(STA)

"An Act exenpting a person driving certain notor vehicles,
aircraft, or watercraft from driver |icensing requirenents; and
providing for an effective date."

MOVED SCS CSHB 397(TRA) OUT OF COW TTEE
PREVI QUS SENATE COW TTEE ACTI ON

HB 374 - See State Affairs mnutes dated 4/11/02.
SB 362 - No previous action to consider.
SB 271 — See Transportation m nutes dated 2/26/02.
SJR 32 — See Transportation m nutes dated 2/26/02.
HB 474 - No previous action to consider.
HB 397 - No previous action to consider.

W TNESS REG STER

Represent ati ve Ken Lancaster

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Sponsor of HB 374

Ms. Vicki Kindseth

Staff to Senator Lyda G een

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Conment ed on SB 362.

M. Bob Doll, Director

Sout heast Regi on

Department of Transportation &
Public Facilities

3132 Channel Dr.

Juneau, AK 99801-7898

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: COpposed SB 271.

M. Lauren Gehrhart

Sout heast Conference

No address provided

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Opposed SB 271.

Ms. Carol Carroll

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 2- April 30, 2002



Department of Natural Resources

400 W I | oughby Ave.

Juneau, AK 99801-1724

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Conmented on SB 271.

M. Bob Loeffler, Director

D vision of Mning, Land and Water
Department of Natural Resources

550 W7th Ave., Ste 1070

Anchorage AK 99501

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Conmented on SB 271.

M. Dick Mlius

Resource Assessnent and Devel opnent Manager
D vision of Mning, Land and Water
Department of Natural Resources

550 W7th Ave., Ste 1070

Anchorage AK 99501

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Commented on SB 271.

M. Crai g Puddi conbe

POB 225

Pal mer AK 00645

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported SB 362.

M. M ke Conner

HC04 Box 7094

Pal mer AK 99645

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Qpposed SB 362.

M. Janes Kracker

POB 1888

Pal mer AK 99645

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Qpposed SB 362.

Ms. JoAnne Fitzgerald

HC34 Box 2259

Wasil |l a AK 99654

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Opposed SB 362.

M. Ken Fitzgerald

HC34 Box 2259

Wasilla AK 99654

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Opposed SB 362.

M. Jack Dunham

POB 615

Pal mer AK 99654

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Comrent ed on SB 362.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 3-

Apri |

30, 2002



Representative Joe G een

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Sponsor of HB 474.

M. Chip Dennerlein, Director

Di vision of Habitat and Restoration
Departnent of Fish & Gane

PO Box 25526

Juneau, AK 99802-5226

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Conment ed on HB 474.

M. Dennis Poshard, Legislative Liaison
Departnent of Transportation &
Public Facilities
3132 Channel Dr.
Juneau, AK 99801-7898
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: QOpposed HB 474.

Representative Vic Kohring

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Sponsor of HB 397.

M. Del Smth, Deputy Conm ssioner
Department of Public Safety

PO Box 111200

Juneau, AK 99811-1200

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Comment ed on HB 397.

M. Frank Sacco

Al aska Native Medical Center
13040 VanScheber Dr.

Anchor age AK 99516

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Cormmented on HB 397 and chil drens'

| aw.

Ms. Mary Leenhui s

Al aska Native Health Center

4315 Di pl omacy Dr.

Anchor age AK 99508

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Comrent ed on HB 397.

M. Bill Reed, Surgeon

Provi dence Regi onal Hospital

8701 Sultana Dr.

Anchor age AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Commented on HB 397.

M. Steve Tower, Othopedic Surgeon
Al aska State Medical Associ ation

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -4-

Apri |

hel met

30, 2002



7645 Giffin St.
Anchor age AK
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Comment ed on HB 397.

M. Charl es Hosack, Deputy Director

Di vi sion of Mtor Vehicles

Department of Adm nistration

PO Box 110200

Juneau, AK 99811-0200

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: No position on HB 397.

M. Scott Hanann

ABATE

PO Box 934

Kenai AK 99611

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Commented on HB 397.

M. Mke Krieber

Staff to Representative Kohring

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Conment ed on HB 397.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
TAPE 02-19, SIDE A
Number 001

#HB374

HB 374- NAM NG DOUTHI T VETERANS' MEMORI AL BRI DGE

CHAI RVAN JOHN COADERY call ed the Senate Transportation Conmmittee
neeting to order at 1:36 p.m and announced HB 374 to be up for
consi deration.

REPRESENTATI VE KEN LANCASTER, sponsor of HB 374, said the
designated bridge spans the Kenai R ver at Soldotna. Sergeant
David Douthit is the only Alaskan to give his life during the
1991 @ulf wWar. He died on February 27, 1991 and is survived by
his w dow, Jesse, their daughter, Rebecca, and his parents who
continue to live in Sol dot na.

SENTOR WARD noved to pass HB 374 out of conmittee w th individual
recommendati ons. There were no objections and it was so ordered.
#

#SB362

SB 362- VACATE RS2477 RI GHT OF WAY ON USS 5265

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 5- April 30, 2002



CHAI RVAN COANDERY announced SB 362 to be up for consideration.

M5. VICKI KINDSETH, staff to Senator Lyda G een, sponsor of SB
362, said the legislation was introduced to address the concerns
of M. Craig Puddiconbe and his partner, M. Jack Dunham about
the RS2477 right-of-way through their property on the Knik
G acier Trail, USS 5265, Section 34, Township 16 North, Range 5
East, Seward Meridi an. She expl ai ned:

M. Puddiconbe canme to our office after exhausting
efforts through DNR to acconplish a vacate process on
his property in the Mat-Su.

The Knik G acier Trail begins in Palnmer and ends at a
mning canp |ocated approximately 3 mles up Metal
Creek and was wused as a continuous route. However,
there is an existing RS2477 recogni zed by DNR for the
area since 1995 that does not go through USS 5265. The
intent of this bill is to vacate an RS2477 on private
property when there is already an existing established
RS2477 route for the area that provides access around
private property.

The vacation of rights-of-way is found in AS 19. 30.410.
The vacate nay be approved by the |egislature.

CHAI RVAN COADERY announced that they would hear the bill later in
the neeting when the teleconference difficulties were fixed.
#

#SB271
SB 271- MARI NE AND RAI L TRANSPORTATI ON AUTHORI TY

CHAI RVAN COANDERY announced SB 271 to be up for consideration.

SENATOR WARD, sponsor of SB 271, noved to adopt the proposed
commttee substitute (CS) to SB 271, Version C, |abeled
Ut ernohle, 4/19/02. There were no objections and it was so
ordered [ TAPI NG DI FFI CULTI ES] .

He said he thought it is in the best interests of the State of
Alaska to form an authority, give it a half mllion acres of
ground and start the ferry systemon its way to becomng a self-
sufficient transportation system After talking to nenbers, it
becane clear that conmbining the Al aska Railroad and the Al aska
Marine H ghway System (AVHS) would not happen so a committee
substitute was drafted to renove the Al aska Rail road.

MR BOB DAL, Director, Sout heast Regi on, Depart nment of
SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 6- April 30, 2002



Transportation and Public Facilities (DOIPF), said:

The bill has two najor inpacts. First, it creates a new
adm nistrative and operating regine for the Al aska
Marine H ghway System That new regine would isolate
the Marine Hi ghway System from the public contact
process that the departnent has in place and which we
bel i eve shoul d be nuaintai ned and strengt hened.

Secondly, it attenpts to create a fundi ng nechani sm for
the Marine H ghway through the sale of public land. In
the light of these primary inpacts in the bill, the
depart nent does not support SB 271.

Wth regard to funding the Marine H ghway through the
sale of land, [I'lIl be brief since that's not ny
expertise. Land l|ocated along the railroad right-of-
way, of course, has an inherent value from the fact
that it is linked to a transportation nethod that also
links the communities along the way. There is no
anal ogy for the Marine H ghway Systemis routes. It is
our understanding that the land contenplated for sale
by SB 271 is already available for sale. W are
skeptical that SB 271 would create a market for public

| and that does not already exist. If the land in
guestion does, in fact, find buyers, the resource wll
have a finite life that we'll eventually find oursel ves

in nmuch the sane circunstances as today.

Turning to the operating reginme for the Marine H ghway,
there are a nunber of issues that the bill raises. The
first is that the bill would renpove the Marine H ghway
from the Departnment of Transportation. The Departnent
is the logical location for an organization whose
primary function is to provide a public transportation
system one that is responsive to public needs and
i maginative in neeting them The creation of a Marine
H ghway Authority will not inprove public access to the
Marine H ghway operations and planning, but would
rather isolate it in its direction from the public's
i nfluence. We believe such an isolation is not in
Al aska's interest.

Secondly, the bill sets up a new conpetition for
federal funds, the results of which are difficult to
predict. Currently, the Departnent is by federal |aw
the conduit by which federal highway transportation
funds are allocated to the state. Wthin the

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -7- April 30, 2002



Departnment, the Marine H ghway conpetes wth all other
transportation nodes for the use of those funds and, to
dat e, t he Mar i ne H ghway has conpet ed quite
successfully. The bill provides for Marine Hi ghway
Aut hority participation in the Departnent's planning
process, but the Department would have a drastically
reduced interest in the operation and maintenance of
t he Mari ne Hi ghway System

| have real concerns about the continued ability of a
Mari ne Hi ghway Authority to conpete for federal funding
in a departnent from which it has been severed. The
bill does nothing to change the Marine H ghway's
dependence upon |egislative support for its mssion.
Even if the funding schene for land sales were wldly
successful, approval by the legislature would still be
required for the annual [indisc.] and for nobst of the
remai ning functions now perforned wth |egislative
aut hori zation. Its enpl oyee organi zati ons woul d bargain
collectively with a board of directors, but the outcone
woul d still require ratification by the legislature. It
is not apparent to us how the Marine H ghway System
woul d benefit from an isolation of the executive
functions whi |l e preserving i ntact its current
relationship with the | egislature.

In summary, M. Chai r man, we believe that the
rel ocati on of the Marine Hi ghway under a Marine Hi ghway
Aut hority woul d degrade rather than inprove the marine
hi ghway needs of Alaskans. It wll not inprove
[indisc.] nor inprove the systenmis ability to attract
and retain the conpetent and dependable enployees it
requires. Further, it wll weaken the Mrine H ghway's
ability to conpete with federal funding and create
tensi ons anong transportation objectives, which do not
now exist. Thank you for your attention and 1'll be
happy to address any questions the commttee nay have.

CHAI RVAN CONDERY asked if this bill passes, whether the resources
it generates will go to the Marine H ghway System

MR. DOLL replied that he thought that was the intention.

CHAl RMAN COWDERY asked him if the Marine H ghway System is
heal t hy enough that it does not need any new sources of dollars.

MR DOLL replied, "W've always had a requirenent to appear
before the legislature for public funding, yes."

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 8- April 30, 2002



CHAI RVAN COWDERY asked whether he would he support the bill if
the Marine H ghway System was renoved fromthe executive budget.

MR. DOLL replied that he would have to exam ne the outcone as he
wasn't sure of all of the inplications.

SENATOR ELTON said he was interested in M. Doll’s conrents about
the sale of l|land being inadequate to sustain the operations of
the Marine H ghway System He said he didn't see anything in the
bill that addresses the sale of land other than giving the
Authority the ability to turn land back to the Departnent of
Nat ural Resources for sale with the proceeds of the sale going to
the original |and owner, not to the Authority. He asked M. Dol
or the sponsor to point out the provision that allows the sale of
| and to generate funds for the Authority.

MR. DOLL replied that he was relying on AS 37.14.570 on page 20.
He thought that was what that fund was intended to do.

SENATOR WARD said that is correct; that is the intention

SENATOR ELTON said the section that provides for the Acquisition
and Managenent of Property on page 6, line 15, of Version C gives
the Authority the ability to purchase property in AS 19.55.230
when it addresses the disposal of land or rights in land. It
says:

The Authority may vacate land or rights in I|and
acquired for the Alaska Marine H ghway System by
executing and filing a deed in the appropriate
recording district. Upon vacating, title reverts to the
person's heirs, successors or assigns in whom it was
vested at the tinme of the taking. The Authority may
al so transfer |and not considered necessary for the use
by the Al aska Mrine H ghway System to the Departnent
of Natural Resources for disposal with the proceeds of
di sposal credited to the funds from which the purchase
of the Iand was originally nade.

He thought that nmeant that if they dispose of |and, they don't
have access to the proceeds fromthe disposal of it.

SENATOR WARD r esponded:

If they give the land to the Departnent of Natural
Resources to sell it, it's credited to the funds from
which the purchase of land was originally made that
woul d revert back to the original fund that is within
the Authority's jurisdiction to spend. That is the way
the drafter said to do this. That's the procedure that

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 9- April 30, 2002



you actually go through in order to get the proceeds
back into the fund that the Authority has the authority
over to extend. That absolutely was the intent. The
intent was to give a half mllion acres to this
Authority and for them sell it, lease it, barter it,
exchange it, chop trees down on it, pave over it, do
what ever they want, but to start deriving sone kind of
income off of the half mllion acres.

SENATOR ELTON asked M. Doll what the relationship is now between
the Marine Hi ghway System and the national highway system and
whether the state <could be in danger of severing that
rel ati onship by the establishnment of an authority.

MR. DOLL repli ed:

Each state highway agency, the Departnent of
Transportation in our case, is the federally
statutorily required channel through which federa
transportation funds flow. The only exception is where
there may be a |l ocal nunicipal transportation authority
of which Anchorage is the only exanple in Al aska. That
relationship would not be disturbed, but the bil
attenpts to assert the interests of the Marine H ghway
by making very specific the Authority's participation
in the Departnment's planning process, which of course,
al so includes programm ng funds. Thus far that system
has worked quite well, in ny view The Departnent, |
t hi nk has been generous with regard to federal highway
funds and naintaining particularly in recent years when
we've had to go to a great deal of effort to keep the
ships regulatorily conpliant. A |lot of noney has gone
into that process.

If the Authority is set up as a separate agency within
the state, and if the departnent has no interest or
concern for its operation, |'m apprehensive that in
sone future relationship the interests of t he
Department and the Marine Highway will be reflected in
a degree to which it supports the division of those
federal funds throughout the state. And, of course,
there's always conpetition for those funds. Now the
departnment has an interest in how the Marine H ghway
operates. If we separate that, | honestly can't
forecast what that would produce. | know that the
conpetition for highway, bridge and tunnel construction
is real and the requirenents throughout Al aska. What it
would be in the future is really difficult to forecast.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -10- April 30, 2002



SENATOR WARD asked M. Doll if his concern is that this bill may
cause a reduction in federal contributions and support because of
the separation. He said that is the opposite of what he thinks
woul d happen. He thinks it would be very good for the Marine
Hi ghway System to be an entity of its own and to be able to
conpete in that process. For the last five years it has appeared
to him that the Mrine H ghway System needs a better standing
within DOTPF s discussion of priorities.

MR. DOLL replied:

My concept of how things are working at the nonent are
that when | cone to the conm ssioner with a requirenent
for a federal project and when we study themw thin the
total DOT context, we represent those as transportation
projects for which the Departnent is responsible. The
Departnent has an interest in how well the Marine
H ghway operates... Every one of those incentives to
provi de adequate funding for the Marine H ghway 1is
present and we take advantage of that. If we change the
circunstances so that the Departnent is no |onger
responsi bl e for the Mari ne H ghway's operation, |I'm not
sure how powerful ny argunents would be and |I'm not
sure how powerful the argunents of the Authority would
be given the fact that the Departnent is no |onger
responsi ble for its operation.

SENATOR WARD said just for the record, nost of the |anguage for
the Authority in the bill was conpletely gleaned out of Senator
Taylor's bill.

SENATOR TAYLOR asked M. Doll to characterize the financial
success of the Railroad and the Marine H ghway over the |ast 10
years. He asked M. Doll why the Railroad has been successful and
the Mari ne H ghway has been an "abject failure."

MR. DOLL said he wasn't qualified to conmment on the Railroad's
success, but its reputation is very good, but it also has a great
many assets that it capitalizes on - not the |east of which are
all the <cruise ship docks that it wutilizes. There is no
conparable real estate asset available to the Marine H ghway
System

SENATOR TAYLOR asked himif he knew what the railroad s prinmary
assets are fromwhich its profits cone.

MR. DOLL replied that he had no idea.

SENATOR TAYLOR said it is all land. He said the Senate just
passed a bill extending sonme of the railroad’s |eases from 35

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -11- April 30, 2002



years to 55 years, because the people who |ease |and from them
want to lease it for a | onger period.

MR. DOLL replied:

You're well aware that |and alongside a railroad has
i nherent value. There is no conparable |and avail able
to anybody else in Alaska. The Railroad is capitalizing
on the fact that its land lies along a conmunications
link that links comunity centers, population centers
as well as being available to the transportation |ink
itself. There is no conparable | and avail able to us.

| don’t know, and |’m not prepared to suggest to the
commttee that | know how nuch revenue this proposal
woul d generate. | have no way of estimating that and
|’ ve not seen any estimates of it.

I"'m only suggesting that the concept that sone
substitute for legislative funding can be found to
operate the Marine H ghway is, | think, speculation and
| would not like to see a situation devel op where the
| egi sl ature believes it has a substitute for GF funding
for the Marine Hi ghway and in fact that does not exist.
| would like to have the continued | egislative support
that we've had in the past and | don't think a
substitute exists for that in the potential for sale of
raw | and t hroughout Al aska.

SENATOR ELTON asked, regarding the original question regarding
the federal funding, if the AVHS has an ability to work with an
authority or is its ability in distributing federal funds limted
to working wth the Departnent of Transportation or an
organi zati on such as AMATS.

MR, DOLL replied that the federal statutory requirenent is that
they operate through the state highway agency. They would not be
able to deal directly with the Marine H ghway Authority.

SENATOR ELTON said he renenbered discussions about the railroad
and that its profit center is the leases that it has for fiber
optics. He said one way he would view this bill nore favorably is
to allow the |lease for the submarine fiber optic cable to revert
to the Marine H ghway Authority. Then they would have taken an
initial step toward financial viability for the Marine H ghway
System

CHAI RVAN COANDERY said he didn't agree that their profit is the

fiber optics lease. In his town, the whole Ship Creek basin is
owned by the railroad and they |ease |land. He thought the

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -12- April 30, 2002



railroad’ s biggest revenue source is the real estate it owns.

SENATOR WARD sai d when the Railroad was originally transferred to
the State fromthe federal governnent, l|land for tracks and cl ose
to the tracks was transferred along it. An additional 47,000
acres that was transferred was not near the Railroad; it owned
the land to supplenent its operation. The |ocation of the 500,000
acres given to the Authority will not nake any difference. The
Aut hority could do whatever it wanted to do with its land. The
Railroad's land is the reason it is making a profit this year.

SENATOR TAYLOR asked M. Doll what the AWVHS would do if it
doesn’t do this. He thought the AVHS is in desperate condition
NOW.

MR. DOLL replied:

| don't believe there is any substitute for dollars to
operate a ferry system and I bel i eve t hat
adm nistrative restructuring is going to get us where
we need to go. The Departnent is working diligently and
successfully to reduce the cost of operating the Marine
H ghway Systemand | think at the sanme tinme inprove the

service to riders. | also believe that there is no
substitute for noney to keep the system going. |'m not
a fiscal expert, but | recognize that support for the

Marine H ghway in ternms of funding has certainly been
declining and the situation that the Senator describes
is doubtlessly true. The Departnent will continue to
work hard to reduce the cost of operating the system
and inprove their service to its passengers and | think
the remaining issues are exactly what we're talking
about here.

SENATOR TAYLOR asked if land isn't a stable way for the AVHS to
acquire an incone stream what M. Doll would suggest to them as
policy makers to set up to provide the AVHS with the type of
stable inconme streamit needs.

MR, DOLL replied that there were various proposals for raising
noney and he wasn't qualified to comment on them He would have
no way of knowing if it's likely that substantial funds would
cone from the proposed projects. He thought the AVHS will stil
need the support of the legislature to get the kind of funding it
needs.

SENATOR TAYLOR asked M. Doll if he read anything in the bill

that said the legislature would not still have an obligation to
support the AVHS until this proposal was running.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -13- April 30, 2002



MR. DOLL replied that he didn't have any anticipation of that. He
woul dn't want anyone to conclude that because the |and was nade
available and if it didn't bring in the funds that were needed
that the legislature had washed its hands of that concern. That
woul d be an unfortunate outcone.

SENATOR TAYLOR said they had never done that with the University,
the Railroad or the Mental Health Trust |ands. Over the years,
t here has been no indication that that woul d happen.

SENATOR WARD added that he talked to former Senator Lloyd Jones
who is now affiliated with the Transportation Conmmttee under
Congressman Don Young and both of them have assured himthat this
process is not only sonething that is being done in sone places,
but it's a conpletely appropriate one and woul dn't affect federal
f undi ng.

TAPE 02-19, SIDE B

MR. LAUREN CEHRHART, Executive Director, Southeast Conference,
said they were fornmed in 1958 to pronote the formation of the
Al aska Marine Hi ghway System He said they recently becane aware
of the changes in the bill and are concerned that caution is
taken with how the Authority would be fornmed. They want an
opportunity to talk with the sponsors about it. No one knows what
kind of a revenue stream could be anticipated out of 500, 000-acre
| and grant.

He al so thought that other efficiencies could still be explored.
He told the commttee that the Southeast Conference had been
tracki ng these issues closely over the |ast few years and deci ded
recently it should attenpt to perform its own study of the
probl ens and potential solutions. The Conference has obtained
grant noney and is engaged in a study process right now to
identify all different kinds of ferry operations around the
world, primarily in the US. They want to learn from other
peopl e's experiences what mght adopt best to this region. They
expect to have prelimnary findings by the mddle of next nonth
and hope to provide the next legislature and governor with a
detail ed anal ysis and reconmendati ons.

SENATOR WARD asked him how long his organization has been in
exi st ence.

MR. GEHRHART replied that it was founded in 1958 in Petersburg by
civic |l eaders who saw a need for a marine hi ghway.

SENATOR WARD asked if the Southeast Conference supported the

mari ne highway authority bills sponsored by fornmer Senator LI oyd
Jones or Senator Robin Tayl or.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -14- April 30, 2002



MR. CGEHRHART replied that he didn't know for certain if those
bills were supported by the Conference. They have paid a |ot of
attention to the problens it has experienced over the last 16
years. He stated, "The way the system was designed in 1962 seened
to work just fine then. bviously, our needs have changed,
situations have changed, funding is different. So we need to
address that."

SENATOR WARD said he was not famliar wth the Southeast
Conference and he didn't ride the Marine System any nore than he
had to, but he said this is the sane authority bill as the other
two. He thought there was a philosophical difference about
whet her the AMHS should remain a line item agency or becone an
Aut hority wth 500,000 acres in addition to other revenue
streans. He asked M. Cerhardt if he saw a bright future for the
Mari ne H ghway Systemthe way it is now.

MR. GERHARDT replied:

| think our organization is on record supporting the
Marine H ghway System because it is our highway
system The issue about this particular piece of

| egislation - | know there are sone changes in what's
shown here as the organizational structure and that's
very inportant to us. | know that there were issues in

the prior bills just how this body is constituted and
what their authority is. The new winkle that you have
here obviously is the land grant, which | think is
i nnovative thinking. I'"'m glad to see people trying to
solve the issue of the recurring budget problens the
system faces. To answer your question about the future
of the Marine H ghway System yes we have concerns. W
know that it's a struggle every year to get adequate
funding to operate the system and we know that there
are efficiencies that can be realized by sone changes
perhaps. W are very concerned though, that we would
make sure what we would conme up with here would truly
fix the system and doesn't end up spinning it off into
t he nether world.

SENATOR WARD asked if he was opposed to the Marine H ghway System
becoming an authority if it could be set up in a manner he is
confortable wth.

MR. CGEHRHART replied that they are not opposed to anything that
will address their problens. In their study, they are attenpting
to determ ne whether an authority or sone other structure would
better address them

SENATOR WARD asked what other structures he had conme up wth.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -15- April 30, 2002



MR. GEHRHART replied that the study is ongoing.

SENATOR WARD said he had been studying this for five years.
Peopl e had been taking noney out of the fund and now it is gone.
He nmaintained, "This mght not be the right answer, but nobody
el se has conme up with one including your group that is now going
to study it alittle nore.."

SENATOR ELTON said he wanted to put the sponsor nore at ease on
this and said:

The Southeast Conference has done an absolutely
incredible job in bringing all of the comunities
together in Southeast Al aska on issues as diverse as
t he Sout heast Regi onal Transportation Plan, education,
fishing issues, a lot of the econom c issues that drive

this. And | can assure the nenbers of this
commttee..about the integrity and the work ethic of the
Sout heast Conference. | don't think that their purpose

in reviewwng the system that we have now and other
nodels that could be applied to the Marine H ghway
Systemis sinply an effort to produce another report,
because this is an organization that 1is results
oriented and |1've got an awful |ot of confort in the
notion that whatever they propose is going to be taken
seriously be people who depend on this transportation
system

SENATOR ELTON asked Ms. Carroll if land that was available for
the trust was open to public selection and, if so, what anount of
interest has been expressed by the public in lands that have
sufficient value to enhance the Marine Hi ghway.

M5. CAROL CARROLL, Departnment of Natural Resources (DNR), replied
that all of the land that the state owns has been classified and
what is <classified as available for different purposes is
certainly available for people to cone to the state and say they
would Iike to lease it or hold a tinber sale.

SENATOR ELTON asked what kind of public interest DNR gets from
peopl e who want access to those lands. He asked if the Authority
controlled those |lands, would there be a higher public interest
in the use of themthan with DNR

M5. CARROLL said as she wunderstands it, if there is a good
prospect for something, that activity would be taking place right
NoWw.

SENATOR TAYLOR asked what the average price per acre was for | and

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -16- April 30, 2002



that had been sold by the State of Al aska since statehood.

MR. BOB LOEFFLER, Director, D vision of Mning, Lands, and Wter,
replied a rough estimate is $750 and a lot of that land is
extrenely renote.

SENATOR TAYLOR said that goes all the way back to when | ands were
sold at a 50% di scount etc.

MR. LOCEFFLER said he didn't believe that was correct, but that
figure included |lands sold since 1980. He offered to get the
commttee better information.

SENATOR TAYLOR asked if DNR just had a land sale on Prince of
Wal es and what the price per acre was.

MR. LOEFFLER said he would have to | ook up that infornmation.

SENATOR TAYLOR said he thought the lots were 2.5 to 3 acres and
sone sold for over $40,000, about $15,000 per acre. He said using
an average of $10,000 per acre times 500,000 acres equals $5
billion. He remarked, "That probably wouldn't be enough the way
our current ferry system is operating. | think they could run
that stuff down a rat hole and still be trying to sell ferries
two years |ater..

He asked M. Loeffler to explain the difference in nanagenent
style between the |ands DNR managed for over 30 years for the
University of Alaska and the $1.5 million nmade off of it and the
over $45 million the University has nade off exactly the same
land using its nanagenent style in about the last nine years
since they took it over.

MR DICK MYLIUS, Resource Assessnment and Devel opnent Manager,
DNR, explained that the University had a windfall and that was
revenue that was al nost entirely fromstate | ands, not University
| ands.

SENATOR TAYLOR noted that that tinber was cut off of state |and,
which is the sanme land Senator Ward is talking about in this
bill. The land was turned over to the University and they chose
to harvest the tinber and make noney off of it.

MR. MYLIUS responded that they had very extensive harvests in
that area before, during and after that sale, but it's not under
hi s di vi sion.

SENATOR WARD noved to pass CSSB 271(TRA), Version C, from
committee with individual recommendati ons.

SENATOR ELTON objected and said that he wasn’'t arguing that the

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -17- April 30, 2002



problens facing the Mrine H ghway System and all of our
transportation systens are not significant, however:

It's a lack of noney to do the mai ntenance, which neans
that we don't do deferred mai ntenance, which neans that

we' re doing the nost expensive maintenance of all. It's
not a problem that's wunique to the Marine H ghway
System and | guess that when people say, 'If not this,

what ?' ny suggestion is that we spend the noney we need
to do to mamintain our transportation infrastructure.
W're not doing it with harbors, we're not doing it
with ports, we're not doing it with the Marine H ghway
System we're not doing it with our roads and hi ghways.
So the problem faced by the Marine H ghway System is
not unique. | guess the only other thing that | would
say is that after an hour of testinony, we' ve come up
with a different way of managing our Marine Hi ghway
System and I'm nuch nore confortable with the approach
that's being adopted by the Southeast Conference. |
guess the last thing that | want to say is | think I've
heard some conments here that cast aspersions on to the
managers that my even suggest that the present
managers of the Marine H ghway System are perfectly

capable of tossing away $1 billion and | find that
suggestion offensive and | don't think it's true and |
think that if that's the basis upon which this bill is
going to nove forward, it's the wong reason for this
bill to nove forward.

SENATOR WARD sai d he thought this was a good bill and he woul dn't
care if all the people that currently run the Marine H ghway
System were appointed by the governor to run the new authority.
He didn't think that was the point. He noted:

The point is we need to separate the Marine H ghway
Authority away fromthe current position that it is as
a line item agency and we need to give it a half
mllion acres and nore for a land base and other
t hi ngs...

SENATOR WARD called for a roll call vote on his npbtion to nopve
CSSB 271(TRA) fromcommttee. SENATORS WARD, TAYLOR, W LKEN, and
CONDERY voted in favor; SENATOR ELTON voted agai nst.

SENATOR ELTON npbved for reconsideration.

SENATOR WARD noted that the commttee would have to rescind its

action.
#

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 18- April 30, 2002



#SJR 32
SIR 32- CONST. AM MARI NE/ RAI L TRANSPORTATI ON FUND

SENATOR WARD brought before the commttee a proposed conmttee
substitute, CSSJR 32(TRA), 4/18/02 Version C, and noved its
adoption as the working docunent before the commttee. He asked
for unani nous consent.

CHAI RVAN COWDERY announced that w thout objection, the notion
carried.

SENATOR WARD nmoved to pass CSSJR 32(TRA) from committee wth
i ndi vi dual recomendati ons.

SENATOR ELTON obj ected so that he could see a copy of it. After a
brief exam nation, he asked if the net effect of the bill is to
create a dedi cated fund.

SENATOR WARD replied that is correct.

SENATOR ELTON nai nt ai ned hi s objection.

CHAI RVAN COADERY called for a roll call vote. SENATORS WARD,
TAYLOR, W LKEN and COADERY voted in favor and SENATOR ELTON was
opposed.

CHAl RMAN CONDERY announced that the bill npoved fromcomittee.
#

#SB362
SB 362- VACATE RS2477 RI GAT OF WAY ON USS 5265

CHAI RVAN COANDERY announced SB 362 to be up for consideration.

MR. CRAI G PUDDI COVBE, co-owner of property USS 5265, said he
asked Senator G een to sponsor this bill. [Indisc.] He read the
DNR deci sion regarding vacating the right-of-way and said, "This
has been a 12-year long battle for us for sonething that shoul d
have never happened. This vacate is very inportant to us."

MR MKE CONNER said he was a defendant in this court case. He
said if this right-of-way is vacated, the state would be
transferring a public asset to a private interest. Second, even
t hough the state asked for jurisdiction at remand, the state’s
request was confused by the court and he is not sure what
interest would be vacated, since it doesn't have |ease or owner
jurisdiction over it. Finally, he said that he and others have
used the right-of-way for subsistence purposes for about 30
years. The land has long been classified since state ownership
for public recreation and mning, not private interest or as a

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -19- April 30, 2002



private preserve.

SENATOR TAYLOR asked him what he thought |and was worth in that
area per acre.

MR CONNER said he did not know.
SENATOR TAYLOR asked himif it was val uabl e | and.

MR. CONNER responded that he hadn’'t checked the assessnment, but
he thought it was about $5, 000.

SENATOR TAYLOR asked if there are about 30,000 acres of state
owned | and in that area.

MR. CONNER replied that there was about 250,000 square mles of
state |l and accessible by a single right-of-way.

SENATOR TAYLOR asked if he had an alternative route to get to his
subsi stence activities.

MR. CONNER replied he did not and that no alternative route is
possi ble due to the nature of the country and the court made that
same determ nation

SENATOR TAYLOR said he had a map that shows an alternative route
and asked himif he was famliar with that nmap.

MR. CONNER replied that they were just handed the bill wth
nothing el se attached to it.

CHAI RMVAN CONDERY asked M. Puddi conbe to speak to the alternative
route.

MR. PUDDICOVBE said DNR s final departnental decision, dated
1995, is the alternative access. That is the RS 2477 4D area. He
noted it was not “appeal able” and dism ssed by the courts. He
explained that there are now two of them one was put on his
private property by the Suprenme Court after the State of Al aska
made that final departnental decision. He asked nenbers to read
DNR s deci si on.

SENATOR TAYLOR said he was looking at the nmap and he was
referring to the route | abeled "alternate.™

MR. PUDDI COMBE said the alternate route is the state's decision.
The other route clearly goes right through private property.

SENATOR TAYLOR asked how he acquired title to that property.
MR. PUDDI COVBE replied he acquired it from M. Doug Summer.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 20- April 30, 2002



SENATOR TAYLOR asked if he was the first person after patent.
MR. PUDDI COMBE replied that he was the patent person.

SENTOR TAYLOR asked if he got patent from the state or federal
gover nnment .

MR. PUDDICOVBE' S replied it was a federal patent that was deeded
to the state.

VMR PUDDI COVBE sai d:

What I'’mtrying to say here is if you look at the nmap
and you | ook three five-acre parcels surrounded by all
this state |l and, you' ve got an RS2477 right through the
center of it - a hundred foot right-of-way that does
not go anywhere. Are you still [listening?.\W already
have an established existing RS2477 for the area
determ ned by the admnistration of DNR in 1994.What ne
and ny co-owners are saying is why have two in the sane
area - they are only 500 yards apart - when both of
them are equal, better and conparable to this whole 25
mle trail.that goes to the glacier. It also jogs off
and goes three or four mles to a mning claim..

SENATOR TAYLOR asked what position DNR has taken on this bill

MR. LOCEFFLER said he wanted to give nenbers sone background on
this.

W would like to give the background, the ful
information so that you understand where our previous
decision cane from but we neither support nor oppose
this bill.

CHAI RVAN CONDERY asked for further public testinony.

MR. JAMES KRACKER sai d he could get 1,000 signatures against this
bill for themin a couple weeks. It would be against the public's
interest and his interests, as well. [Mst of M. Kracker’s
testinony was indiscernible.] He felt M. Puddi conbe got what he
deserved.

M5. JOANNE FI TZGERALD sai d she represented herself and the public
and acknow edged that she is involved in the Fitzgerald versus
Puddi conbe court case. She noted that M. Puddi conbe stated that
his file has a copy of the DNR s final determ nation, but he

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -21- April 30, 2002



didn't mention that in Septenber 2000, DNR nade a thorough review
that included public coments and the Conm ssioner denied the
request for vacation on this road. DNR determned that the
alternate does not provide safe access to the mning claim for
nost of the public. The Suprene Court determned that the
alternative route was too dangerous for the public. The vacation
was al so denied at the Mat-Su Borough |evel. There doesn't seem
to be any health or safety issues for this request and there
doesn't seemto be any reason to give up the right-of-way of the
public that would close off a major part of the Knik dacier
trail and access for mners to their clains and subsistence
hunt ers.

MR. KEN FI TZGERALD said there is a history of 80 or 90 years of
use on the trail and M. Puddi conbe even admitted under oath that
he had used the trail prior to the purchase of the |and.

CHAI RMAN CONDERY asked what the width of the trail

MR, FITZGERALD replied that it is a 100 ft. right-of-way after
the Suprenme Court decision. He added it is the only safe and
dependabl e route to the area.

CHAI RVAN COADERY asked how they traverse this trail

MR. FI TZGERALD replied by snow machine, four-wheeler, or pickup
truck.

3:05 p.m

SENATOR WARD asked M. Puddiconbe if the trail was di scl osed when
he purchased the property.

MR. PUDDI COVMBE replied no, it was a private driveway at that
tinme.

SENATOR WARD asked how he got to the property.
VR. PUDDI COVBE replied by swanp buggy.
SENATOR WARD asked if he used the RS2477 trail.

MR, PUDDI COMBE replied that it wasn't an RS2477 then. He added,
"That happened in October of 1995.”

SENATOR WARD asked when he purchased it.
MR. PUDDICOVE replied in 1983. He said that none of the mners
appeal ed the state’s decision. They were all going to live with

it. He said they were going to destroy his property when they
coul d have ot her access.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -22- April 30, 2002



MR. KRACKER said he and DNR offered to get together to try to
take another right-of-way and M. Puddiconbe refused any
settlement. The only one who is destroying property is M.
Puddi conbe. The 100 ft. width is not by court order, but was
based on | egislative action.

SENATOR TAYLOR said it looked to himlike the reason they have
this bill before themis that M. Puddi conbe needs to have the
bill passed to convey the right-of-way back to him and asked if
that was right.

MR. PUDDI COVMBE asked to read the sponsor statenent: "The intent
of the bill is to vacate an RS2477 on private property when there
is already an existing established RS2477 route for the area to
provi de access around the private property.”

TAPE 02-20, SIDE A

SENATOR TAYLOR asked himif he had to have the property vacated
to clear title to his property so it's not encunbered by a state
right-of - way.

MR. PUDDI COMBE replied that was correct. He has owned the |and
for 53 vyears and DNR had done a very careful on-site
i nvestigation.

SENATOR  TAYLOR  asked M. Loeffler why DNR did not
adm nistratively vacate that RS2477 easenent as provided by state
| aw.

MR. LOEFFLER replied:

In 2001, we went out to look at it with respect to
vacation. As you may know, the vacation standard is
three-fold - one vacated by the legislature, two if
requested by the municipality and with an alternate
route to provide reasonabl e access and the municipality
has requested it or three, our vacation standard is
there another - you may not vacate an RS2477 ri ght- of -
way unless a reasonable and conparable established
alternative right-of-way on each tract does exist and
is sufficient to satisfy access in the reasonably
foreseeabl e future.

W went out there and determined that reasonably
foreseeable uses included [indisc.] mning vehicles,
recreation and things of that nature. Wien we | ooked at
the alternative trail and determned there were a

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -23- April 30, 2002



nunber of sections that were steep for mning
[indisc.].

They determined the alternative trail was too steep wthout
additional construction and did not neet the standards of AS
19. 34. 10.

SENATOR TAYLOR said he appreciated that explanation and said he
was one of the authors of that proviso that he just read through,
because they had encountered difficulties all over the state with
RS2477 rights-of-way suddenly appearing on people's |and that
they were unaware of. He wanted to make certain there were good
alternatives available and to give the departnent the authority
to exercise sonme discretion in this regard. It sounds |ike DNR
exerci sed that discretion and with good reason.

SENATOR WARD said he hadn't been down this trail and asked why
they didn't just go around the property and not up the hill

MR. LOEFFLER replied that the alternative route had been
established through many years of use.

SENATOR WARD asked if it was within his ability under current |aw
to establish an alternative route that goes behind the people's
property and not up the hill

MR. LCEFFLER replied that it would take very little construction
to establish an alternative route that is suitable.

W do not have the noney in our budget to go around
doing [this] for his RS2477 or for the many others that
have simlar requests. Wth the expenditure of limted
funds we would be very happy to permt and flatten an
alternative route that would allow for a vacation by
M . Puddi conbe.

SENATOR WARD asked how many feet they were tal king about with the
parcel s invol ved.

MR. LOEFFLER replied that it was roughly a half-mle trail.

SENATOR WARD said he thought it |ooked |ike he was talking about
| ess than 1000 ft. of trail in order to clear that | ot.

MR. LCEFFLER said it looked |ike the | east expensive alternative
construction would be to do sone work in a few of the steep
spots.

SENATOR WARD said it seenmed that sonething wasn't right, because
the alternative trail is very steep and it seens if they just

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 24- April 30, 2002



scooted around the outside of that one parcel, they would be
downhill, at |east, and not going up the nountain.

MR. LOEFFLER replied that he didn't have a map in front of him
but they would be happy to permt soneone to nmake an alternative
trail, if they wished to do so, but the alternative trail in
their view would be only for construction on less than five
| ocations before it would satisfy the criteria in AS 19. 34. 10.

SENATOR TAYLOR said |looking at the map, it |ooked |like for years
there had been two trails there. One trail was for noving m ning
equi pnent up and that's the one on M. Puddi conbe's property. The
other trail |ooks Iike a shortcut.

SENATOR WARD asked if DNR had the ability to grant a waiver on a
trail if there nois alternative trail to go to.

MR. LOEFFLER replied absol utely.
SENATOR WARD asked what would be the criteria for the | aw.

MR. LOEFFLER replied that the criteria for vacation is reasonably
conparable to establishing an alternative right-of-way to satisfy
all present and reasonably foreseeabl e uses.

MR. FI TZGERALD said the alternative route would cut into the 80s
and on M. Puddiconbe's original patent issued by the federa
governnment, the road is as surveyed [indisc.].

MR, JACK DUNHAM said the trail through his property had to be
bl asted to be able to get through.

SENATOR W LKEN said he wanted to talk to the sponsor of this bil
before they noved it from commttee and asked M. Loeffler to
| ook at the map called "The Prelimnary Across the Mddle" - USS
5265, which shows the west boundary is 484 ft. He asked if there
were any private parcels like it between the northern boundary
and point C

MR. LCOEFFLER replied yes, USS 5839, which is roughly the sane
size as USS 5265. He said their west borders are not directly
paral | el

SENATOR W LKEN asked how long of a trail would be needed to get
to the existing trail that would intersect to point C

MR. LCEFFLER said he thought it would be sonewhat | onger, but
that it would be |less extensive to render the alternative trai
[indisc.].

SENATOR W LKEN asked if it would be easier to make the alternate

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -25- April 30, 2002



trail a better trail than to build a new trail along the west
boundary of USS 5265 and the piece that's on top of it.

MR. LOEFFLER replied it woul d.

SENATOR TAYLOR asked for a ballpark figure of what it would cost
to go in there and blast the alternative trail so it was useable.

MR. LCEFFLER replied that there were five steep sections and two
side slopes and he didn't know how nuch it would cost.

SENATOR WARD noved to pass SB 362 from conmttee with individua
recomrendat i ons.

SENATOR ELTON obj ect ed. SENATORS W LKEN, WARD, TAYLOR and COADERY
voted in favor; SENATOR ELTON voted against. SB 362 noved to the
next commttee.

#

#HBA 74
HB 474- ANCHORAGE COASTAL W LDLI FE REFUGE

CHAI RVAN COANDERY announced HB 474 to be up for consideration

REPRESENTATI VE JOE GREEN, sponsor of HB 474, said that HB 474 is
a protection bill that deals with a very unique saltwater narsh
that in 1971 was called the Potter Point State Gane Refuge and
later in 1988 was changed to the Anchorage Fish and WIldlife
Refuge. He explained that it is a very unique saltwater marsh
that is hone for a variety of w nged and four-legged creatures
and has a very critical portion of its habitat right at the
juncture of the southwest boundary and the Refuge. For sone tine,
the Departnment of Transportation has been |ooking at extending
the existing Tony Knowl es Coastal Trail up near the airport for
about 12 mles diagonally along the boundary of the Refuge and
private property down to the Potter Marsh. Unfortunately that
trail that has been so predom nant for the |ast two-plus years is
right through this very critical habitat area. This bill is an
attenpt to try and protect that area, not to prevent putting a
trail there.

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN expl ained that $2.2 million has been spent
so far on this issue and there is still no EI'S. About three years
ago, both bodies passed legislation requiring consideration of
other trails. That legislation was vetoed by the Governor wth
hi s assurance that consideration would be given to the situation,
but that [consideration] has been slip-shod. People who have been
trying to protect this area came up with an alternative gold
route that has nore exposure to the Inlet than the orange route
if vegetation could be cut.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 26- April 30, 2002



In January, Chip Dennerlein, Director, Division of Habitat and
Restoration, said ADF&G had been working on this issue. He agreed
that the only draft that was shown could not be permtted and he
outlined several reasons why. Another route was found, the fuscia
route, but Representative Geen said he hasn't been able to get a
copy of it. He said that is an exanple of the kind of problens
they had been having all along. He suggested that as this bill
noves, things will happen on the other end.

VR. CHI P DENNERLEI N, Director, D vision of Habi t at and
Restoration, Al aska Departnent of Fish and Gane (ADF&G, agreed
with sonme of Representative Geen's coments. He said their
concern was with the specific location of the trail and that
there were species that were unique to Anchorage and shared by
other states. One of the highly sensitive areas where they did
not want a trial has 1,600 - 1,800 snow geese grazing on it
today. They had a 6,500-people heart run this weekend and they
woul dn't want to propose a trail where those kinds of activities
woul d happen. They worked out an alignnment that would be a viable
alternative that would let people enjoy wildlife but avoid sone
of the sensitive areas.

Currently the trail is a federal highway project that is subject
to the process and environnental provisions in the Federal
Hi ghway Act and NEPA. The Federal H ghway Adm nistration (FHA)
has reviewed all of the information in the alternative and has
now released the sole approved list of viable and reasonable
alternatives that the public will get to review They will get to
choose one of the alternatives or mx and nmatch anong them The
orange route does not exist anynore, but the fuscia route does.

MR. DENNERLEIN said pre-approval of a right-of-way by the
| egislature would be problematic. He offered to let the
| egi sl ature know of his decision.

SENATOR WARD asked where the fuscia route went.

MR. DENNERLEI N expl ai ned that the fuscia route avoi ds goi ng bel ow
the bluff between the [indisc.] spill area and Johns Park. It's
part of the old Huffman alignnment. It cones back through Johns
Park and through the Furrow Creek @illy and avoids the rifle
range.

SENATOR WARD asked if all the routes had property anal yses.

MR. DENNERLEIN replied yes and said the problem with the gold
route is that it would have a very large inpact on private

property.

SENATOR WARD asked if the section from Johns Park to Ccean Vi ew
Bluff takes any private property.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -27- April 30, 2002



MR. DENNERLEIN said that DNR could better answer that question
but, in the area he was referring to, there was a right-of-way
that avoids the property. He thought there was a right-of-way
acquisition and that soneone had donated sone |and. No property
is taken along Ccean View Dr., along the bluff or property.

SENATOR WARD said he had lived in that area a long tinme and asked
himif he didn't think this would cause danmage to any wldlife
and where he got his information. He asked what studies he had
done to show that there is an affect on wildlife there.

3:55 p.m

MR. DENNERLEIN replied those would be from nesting surveys, a
1997 Survey of WIldlife Patterns, a study on the use of the
refuge by mammals by Rick Sinnott, and a shorebird and mgratory
use report. He said there are several critical points around the
Campbell Creek area. He said there was no way to put a route
through the area that wouldn't have serious adverse inpacts at
sonme point in the year.

TAPE 02-20, SIDE B

He said the only way to address the area Representative G een was
concerned about would be to nove the trail to the top of the
bl uf f.

MVR. DENNI S  POSHARD, Legi sl ative Liaison, Depar t ment of
Transportation and Public Facilities (DOTPF), said DOTPF
recogni zes the concerns of Representative Geen's constituents,
but believes this bill is not necessary. He expl ai ned:

Nunber one, we're already following a federally
recogni zed and mandated process, the federal NEPA
process. And that process appears to be working, albeit
a contentious, painful process. | think that we're
going to ultimately get to the right outcone.

Secondly, this area has already been designated a
Refuge by state statute. That Refuge has a specific
managenent plan in place and ADF&G is responsibly
managi ng that refuge. You've heard Chip Dennerlein
mention that he would not at all permt certain routes
that were being considered and that in other areas he
woul d be adamant that mtigation occur before he would
permt.

In response to Senator Taylor's question on funding, Anchorage
Metropolitan Area Transportation Study (AMATS) gets about $8

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 28- April 30, 2002



mllion every year to go towards trails specifically within the
Anchorage netropolitan area. They have every right under federal
law to determ ne how that funding gets spent. The state has no
authority to tell themhow it gets spent.

SENATOR WARD nmoved HB 474 out of commttee with individual
recommendati ons.

SENATOR ELTON obj ected saying that he would vote no. He said it
is a tough issue for him because he feels |ike he's taking the
conservative point of view by saying that he's going to tip the
scales in favor of access and away from habitat, which is
unusual . He al so suggested that the legislature is not the best
pl anni ng and zoni ng conm ssi on.

SENATORS W LKEN, WARD, and COWDERY voted in favor; SENATOR ELTON
vot ed agai nst and HB 474 passed from conmmttee.
#

#HB397
HB 397- EXEMPTI ONS FROM DRI VER S LI CENSI NG

CHAI RMAN  COWNDERY announced CSHB 397(STA) to be up for
consi derati on.

SENATOR WARD noved to pass CSHB 397(STA) fromcommittee.

CHAI RVAN COWNDERY obj ected and asked the sponsor if he had worked
out the problens fromthe previous neeting with Senator WI ken.

REPRESENTATI VE VI C KOHRI NG sponsor of HB 397 said he didn't
think they had worked out the problens, although they had a
meet i ng.

SENATOR WARD noved to withdraw his notion and asked for unani nous
consent. There were no objections and it was so ordered.

REPRESENTATI VE KOHRI NG expl ai ned that CSHB 397(STA) renoves the
license requirenent for an off-road vehicle, which is defined as
snow nachi nes, boats, ATVs, etc. Having a driver's license to
drive a car in a city street is not germane to driving an ATV or
snow nachi ne.

4:10 p.m

SENATOR W LKEN said he had the opportunity to ride his ski-doo
this weekend and went 85 nph. If this bill is passed, all proof
of responsibility and restrictions for a 13-year old to junp on
that machine and drive it will be gone. He would suggest that is
| i ke giving 13 year olds a |l ethal weapon. It seens strange to him
that at 14, a license is required to operate an autonobile, but

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -29- April 30, 2002



at 13, 14 or 15 no license is required to get on any snow nachi ne

that will kill. According to testinony, there are 350 accidents
per year. He mamintained, "This bill is a very dangerous bill
This bill, should it go through, will kill kids and | just don't
think that's really what we want to do."

He said the conmittee is deliberating this bill because an
over zeal ous park ranger unadvisedly wote a citation for a child
on a kiddi cat. He remarked, "W have taken that event and
changed it into what | consider to be a huge bill that once again

puts our youth at risk."

He suggested addressing the follow ng issues:

e If the unlicensed operator is within reasonable proximty to
and under supervision of a licensed adult

e Danmmges or injuries caused as a result of an unlicensed
operator are the responsibility of the parent or the |egal
guardi an of the operator

 The legislation is effective upon approval of the SNOTRAC
safety course by the Al aska Departnent of Public Safety

e This issue will be reviewed in five years

He said the commttee heard testinony that SNOMRAC i s devel opi ng
a safety program He conmmented that if the |icensing requirenent
is lifted, there should at |east be sone place to send children
to get sone level of training. He said w thout changes he renains
adamant |y opposed to the bill

SENATOR WARD said someone can cross a road, but if soneone is
traveling from point A dowmn a road to get to another snow nobile
trail, there is no |l ocal ordinance that says that is |egal. Those
people are illegally going down that road. It's permssible to go
across a road. He also said that not everyone abuses the |aw and
in fact the ones that abuse it usually aren't kids.

SENATOR ELTON asked what the net effect of this anendnent woul d
be on a youngster in Bush Alaska where they have no highway
system and a snow nachine is often used to get to school, do a
trap line, or go to a grandnother's house.

SENATOR WARD said the youngster would need to have an adult wth
t hem

SENATOR W LKEN said he wanted to go back to the issue of what
problemthey are trying to solve. He stated:

This | aw has been on the books for decades. Suddenly it
rises because of sone incident - it rises to sone
notoriety... So we have an adm nistrative problem that

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 30- April 30, 2002



we're going to take what | consider to be a very nmmjor
step that puts kids at risk

SENATOR ELTON agreed with what Senator WI ken was saying and
tended to agree up to a point with what needs to be done and that
clearly there is a safety issue. In his mnd there is a dramatic
di fference between recreational use in areas where a snow nachi ne
will be on a road system in which you have to obey the |aws of
the land as witten for operators of a notor vehicle. In sone
areas of the state, nostly the Bush, having a snow machine isn't
a matter of choice, it's a matter of necessity for all ages of
users.

SENATOR WLKEN said they are not just talking about snow
machi nes, but ATVs, jet skis, watercraft, river boats, and
basically any propelled vehicle.

REPRESENTATI VE KOHRING said he also thought that safety is a
concern. He suggested passing the bill to decrimnalize the use
of off-road vehicles without a driver's |license and next session
| ook at the suggestions fromthe SNOTRAC Board.

CHAI RVAN COADERY asked if the people who nake snow cats for kids
woul d be put out of business.

SENATOR W LKEN responded that Arctic Cat doesn't nmke them any
nore, but Ski-doo does and they are limted to about 120 cc and
go about 8 nph. Those machines will still get produced and he
t hought at 8 nph you're going to be within reasonable proximty
of your parent. He is bothered with the issue of the 13-year ol d.

REPRESENTATI VE KOHRI NG pointed out that a safe speed and safe
driving are still applicable whether there's a license |aw or
not .

4:25 p. m

SENATOR WARD explained that his grandchildren have earned the
right to drive their off road vehicles and he thought there were
enough laws to take care of the situation exactly the way it is
and there is nothing they can legislate to stop a 13 year old
from going out of control. He thought they needed to enforce the
current | aws.

MR. DEL SM TH, Deputy Conmi ssioner, Departnent of Public Safety,

said that the State Troopers are sonewhat anbivalent about any
change in the |law recognizing that they patrol a part of Al aska
that uses off road vehicles for their primary source for
transportation. Requiring a driver's license is not an
enforcenment priority for themfor a nunber of reasons. It is down
on the list of the seriousness of things. They are trying to deal

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -31- April 30, 2002



with other issues and with having enough staff to patrol. A snow
machine can outrun a car and they don't have very many snow
machi ne i nci dents.

SENATOR W LKEN asked how many citations had been witten for kids
operating snow machi nes without driver's |icenses.

MR SMTH replied that it is extrenely rare.

SENATOR W LKEN asked if he thought enforcenent efforts would
i ncrease or decrease if this | aw doesn't pass.

MR SMTH replied that he would say [it would not change] given
their situation and the prioritization of their response.

SENATOR WARD poi nted out that Senator W/ ken said that Fairbanks
has an ordinance that allows snow nobilers to go down a road to
get fromone trail to another, but he said it is inpossible for a
|l ocal entity to adopt such an ordi nance because it would be in
conflict with state law, which says you can go across a road in
order to get across it. There's nothing that says you can go down
a road to get to another trail. Oherwise you could use the
argunent that you can drive fromWI|lowto Big Lake.

MR. SM TH said he was quoting 13 AAC and the 90-degree crossing
roadways is what it refers to. People are not to travel the
roadways, but he is not prepared to comrent nore.

SENATOR WARD said the troopers in his area have told al
operators, whether of ATVs, snow nmachines or dirt bikes to stay
of f the roadways.

SENATOR WARD said the in the northern part of Seldovia, nost
peopl e use ATVs and four-wheelers to get from house to house so,
so there is a conflict because kids are breaking the | aw now.

MR, FRANK SACCO, Chief, Surgery Service, Al aska Native Medi cal
Center, said he acted as director of the Trauma Service and had
been taking care of patients, a ngjority of whom are from the
Bush. He shares sonme of the concerns about the way the law is
witten, but he thought they would be remiss if they didn't | ook
at the overall problenms with snow machines and especially wth
children. He said he sees about one child per nonth with a
serious head injury fromriding a snow machi ne wi thout a hel net.
He has never treated one who was wearing a helnet. He thought
they are the sanme as |ife preservers for kids on boats. He
strongly urged that the bill require the use of helnets for
children. He sees six-year olds driving four-year olds around on
ATVs and he thought there needs to be sone |aws about those
si tuations.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -32- April 30, 2002



SENATOR WARD asked if passing a helnmet law would stop the
irresponsi bl e parents who were allowng a six-year old to drive a
f our - wheel er.

MR. SACCO replied that he didn't think they could legislate
personal responsibility for everyone, but he thought a hel net |aw
for kids would increase usage of them

SENATOR WARD asked if M. Sacco had asked any Native
organi zati ons how they woul d feel about a hel net |aw.

MR. SACCO said he is speaking for the Al aska Native Medical Board
(ANPHB) and they support of taking neasures for children.

M5. MARY LEEVHU S, ANMC, said she does a lot of famly teaching
and children conme in with too many brain injuries. Mst people
don't realize that it doesn't take a |lot of speed to cause severe
injury to the brain and even death. A helnet would protect the
brain of a child. Any tinme the brain is knocked around it can
bleed and tear and that's what sonetines causes irreversible
damage.

TAPE 02-21, SIDE A
4:47 p. m

MR. BILL REED, Providence Hospital surgeon, said that recent
patients who are involved in snow machi ne accidents are exposed
to nmuch greater forces than they have ever seen before,
predom nantly because of the speed involved. The velocity is what
determnes the extent of the injury. In addition, the terrain
that people travel on in Alaska is nmuch nore difficult. He
st at ed:

The point we are trying to make here is that right now
the only law that controls children on snow machi nes
restricts people who are 16 that don't have a license.
Qur concern is that this is a flawed law. It could be
inproved upon and | think that Senator WIken's
proposals go a long way to that inprovenent...

CHAl RMAN COWDERY asked what percentage of the patients are
adul t s.

MR. REED replied about 50% were over the age of 18.

SENATOR WARD asked if he was advocating a helmet |aw for people
under the age of 14.

MR REED said in his opinion a helmet law is an inportant
consideration and that conpensation for the victins of accidents

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 33- April 30, 2002



shoul d be part of this too.

MR, STEVE TOWER, Othopedic Surgeon, Alaska State Medica
Association, said he has 14 years of experience in nedical
practice in Al aska. He told nenbers:

The Al aska State Medi cal Associ ati on supports
| egislation regarding snow machines and ATVs that
defines and enforces elenments of safe machi ne
operation, defines and enforces appropriate training
and docunentation of machine operators, would define
age restrictions for machine operators and define and
enforce safe machine operation in the presence of
pedestrians and supports mandatory use of appropriate
hel nets by those 16 years of age or younger, either
operating these machi nes or transporting the nachine.

The reason for this stance, which was passed
overwhelmng by the delegates of the Alaska State
Medi cal Association, is the huge nmass of trauma grief
we' re seeing on an annual basis, which is increasing at
a rate of 10% a year. You all should know the scope of
the problem This is the second |eading cause of death
and injury in our children age 10 to 14. These nachi nes
are known in Alaska to be ten tines nore hazardous to
operate than a road vehicle. | congratul ate Senate Ward
with being able to sit there wthout the state of
nervous anxiety while a seven-year old operates one
W thout adult supervision. | think that’'s absolutely
idiotic and the data supports ne there.

W know t hese machines kill 30 to 50 Al askans per year.
They hospitalize 300 to 400 Alaskans a year. This
consunes $2,000 to $3,000 days per year to treat the
injuries, nost cost of which is borne by the state. One
quarter of those killed or hospitalized are mnors. A
quarter of those hospitalized are brain injured and
this is the main driver of |ong-term nedical expense.
For a brain-injured patient, only a fraction of nedical
and soci al expense is derived in the acute
hospitalization and about 8 to 10 tinmes that initial
expense is extracted fromsociety at a |later date. Only
a small fraction of these people are ever enployable
and in many of these famlies, a famly nmenber has to
quit work to care for them at hone. It's for these
reasons the State Medical Society is vehenmently opposed
to HB 397. This is an idiotic piece of |egislation,
whi ch was a hip shot and a problemthat doesn't exist...

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 34- April 30, 2002



SENATOR WARD asked what he was advocating for.

MR. REED replied that he wanted a mandatory helnet | aw for people
16-years old or younger if they operate or transport snow
machi nes and ATVs.

SENATOR WARD said he wasn't ready to pass a law |like that today.
He al so thanked himfor his service to the comunity.

MR. CHARLES HOSACK, Deputy Director, D vision of Mtor Vehicles
(DW), said he would answer questions.

SENATOR WARD asked if the DW had a position on mandating that
everyone under the age of 16 wear a hel net.

MR. HOSACK replied no.
SENATOR WARD asked himto get one, please.

MR, SCOTIT HAMANN, ABATE, said you can't make crimnals of good
peopl e and no one even knew this bill existed. He goes out every
weekend with about 30 kids fromtheir church and has a good tine
and they shouldn't be crimnals. He said there are |laws on the
book right now that deal wth reckless endangernent and things
| i ke that and troopers have the discretion to enforce them

CHAI RMAN COWDERY asked if snow machine shops sell safety
accessories like helnets of different sizes.

MR. HAMANN replied they do. He thought the freedom of choice
wor ks because about 75% peopl e wear helnets on their own.

CHAl RMAN CONDERY commented that every shop he's been in tries to
sel |l hi m everything.

SENATOR W LKEN said he wanted the bill's sponsor to comment on
his four suggestions; the issue of safety and an alternative to
this disqualification and a way to review it in five years.

REPRESENTATI VE  KOHRING said t hose are not uni nport ant
considerations, but they should be I|ooked at in different
| egi slation on safety. He appreciates Senator WIken' s concerns
and didn't want to down play the issue of safety.

SENATOR ELTON noved anendnent 1, on page 2, line 7, which says a
person who is at least 16 years of age with a valid driver's
license froma jurisdiction other than Al aska can drive a notor
driven cycle with a provision that an Al aska driver's |icense for
driving a notor driven cycle be obtained by the end of a 90-day
period after entering the state.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 35- April 30, 2002



He explained the purpose of the anendnent is to address
situations in which a tourism entrepreneur in a conmunity may
want to rent Vespas and nopeds to tourists. Language on page 1,
line 11 provides that a non-resident who is at |east 16 years of

age and who has a valid driver's license issued by another
jurisdiction [may drive] a Vespa or noped, however an Al aska
driver's license mnust be obtained after a 90-day period of

entering the state. There is dispute anobng attorneys as to
whet her or not that exenption applies to notor driven cycles. In
our state there is an M qualification that applies to
notorcycles and an M qualification, which applies to Vespa
scooter, nopeds, etc. In nost states a driver's license allows
you to use a Vespa or a noped; in Alaska it doesn't. This would
provi de that tourists who are getting off a ship and want to rent
one can do it. If they stay, they can't. This has nothing to do
with discussions on the bill so far, but it does provide an
econom c opportunity for tourismentrepreneurs.

CHAl RMAN COWNDERY asked if this would apply to dirt bikes or
not or cycl es.

SENATOR ELTON replied that drivers would need an ML qualification
on their driver's Jlicense. This only applies to the M
qgqualification

MR. M KE KRI EBER, staff to Representative Kohring, explained that
HB 397 woul d exenpt the license requirenment for off road bikes.

SENATOR ELTON said there was a difference of opinion anong
attorneys about whether |anguage on page 1 of HB 397 would
actually allow his constituent to have the vehicle rental
business. He said this is a comobn business in other tourism
destinations and woul d provide an econom c opportunity for a | ot
of peopl e.

SENATOR WARD asked if the City and Borough of Juneau can allow it
now wi t hout a state | aw

SENATOR ELTON replied that state | aw prevails.

SENATOR WARD asked M. Hosack what he thought about the
anendnent .

MR. HOSACK responded that they woul d have sonme concerns over it.
Anyone operating a notorcycle in Alaska is required to have a
notorcycl e endorsenent, either ML or M2, the M2 is for small
bi kes under 50 cc. He would be concerned if the anmendnent allows
non-residents a privilege that is not allowed to residents,
especially over the size of the power of a vehicle and in a
crowded city environnent such as in some southeastern

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 36- April 30, 2002



comunities. He opposed the anmendnent.
SENATOR ELTON said he coul d understand DW's concern and st at ed:

| would just suggest that if other jurisdictions are
| i censing people for the operation of these nachines,
we ought to reciprocate unless they are going to be
here for |onger than 90 days.

SENATOR TAYLOR said he woul d object to the anmendnent only because
he thought it was covered by |anguage on paragraph 2 on line 11.
He is sonmewhat surprised by the response from DW and thought
they m ght anend the legislation to include it.

SENATOR WARD said part of the problemis that some states provide
for a driver's license that authorizes a person to drive a
notorcycle, too. Those 16 year olds fromthose states who cone to
Al aska woul d be able to rent a notorcycle, but Al askan ki ds woul d
not because Al aska now has dual licensing. In Nevada one license
covers all, like it used to here.

MR KRIEBER said that all ages are required to have an
endor senment for notorcycles.

SENATOR TAYLOR asked what inpact this would have on stand up two-
wheel ers.

SENATOR ELTON replied that his understanding is that in the
| egi slation regarding personalized notor vehicles no |Ilicense
woul d be required and the legislation limted the restrictions on
where they could go.

SENATOR W LKEN clarified that under regulation 2.455, section 3,
it is legal in Fairbanks to drive on a road if you're making your
way to a trail. The city has a prerogative to adopt that policy.
You can also ride on a bridge as long as you don't obstruct
traffic and obey traffic rules. He comented, "At least in this
city, they can have a 13-year old on a snow machine on a city
street going to the trail and it would be |l egal."

SENATOR WARD said that is in violation of state |aw.

SENATOR ELTON said that he was ready to vote on the anendnent,
whi ch inserted on page 2, after line 7, "a person who is at |east
16 years of age with a valid driver's license."

SENATOR TAYLOR noted that this anendnent shifts the intent of the
bill fromjust off road vehicles to on road.

SENATOR WARD added and to out-of-state people.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -37- April 30, 2002



SENATOR TAYLOR said it didn't nention anything about the size of
t he vehicle.

SENATOR ELTON responded that the definition of a notor driven
cycle is 50 cc's or |ess.

SENATOR TAYLOR asked what sonet hi ng above 50 cc's call ed.

SENATOR ELTON replied that would be a notorcycle requiring an M
qualification on the driver's license.

CHAIl RMAN COWDERY asked if the anendnent would require a title
change.

SENATOR ELTON replied that from opinions he has received it
wor ks.

SENATOR WARD mmi ntained his objection because it treats Al aska
citizens as second cl ass peopl e.

CHAl RVAN COWNDERY asked for the vote. SENATORS TAYLOR, ELTON,
W LKEN voted in favor; SENATORS WARD and COADERY voted agai nst;
and Anendnment 1 was adopt ed.

SENATOR WARD noved to pass SCS CSHB 397(TRA) from commttee with
i ndi vi dual recommendati ons.

SENATOR W LKEN said it is a dangerous bill

SENATOR ELTON agreed and thought they should spend a little bit
of time to figure out how to nake it work so that it addresses
the safety issue and the different kinds of uses across the
state.

SENATOR TAYLOR said they wouldn't have this bill before themif
it weren't for a bizarre incident. He thought that there had been
great testinony, but it is a conplicated subject. He said that
watercraft in the Bush is one of our single biggest killers.

There were no objections and it was so ordered. People will act
irresponsibly, but he asked how to regulate that. He remarked,
"We're killing nore people on snow nmachi nes than we are by drunk

drivers and yet we're falling all over ourselves down here to
penalize and pass laws and do additional things on drunk
drivers."

CHAI RVAN COADERY called for the vote. SENATORS ELTON, WARD,
TAYLOR, and CONDERY voted in favor; SENATOR W LKEN vot ed agai nst
and the bill passed fromconmttee as anended.

#

CHAI RVAN COADERY adj ourned the neeting at 5:30 p.m

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 38- April 30, 2002



